
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA Mayor Carlton Kirby 
SUNSERVE BUILDING CONFERENCE ROOM Council Member Ray Nyhuis 
2312 WILTON MANORS, FLORIDA Council Member Jeff Grenell 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 1, 2024 Council Member Mark DiPaolo 
6:30pm Council Member Warren Nadeau 

Council Member William Daugherty 

TO PARTICIPATE VIA TELEPHONE 
Dial-in: 1-443-489-6180 

Pin: 730 449 611# 
People who wish to speak will be recognized 

by the Mayor during the open public comment 
portion of the meeting 

1. ROLL CALL

2. NEW BUSINESS

a. Discussion of year-to-date financial statements

b. Proposed budget for 2024-25 Fiscal Year

c. Proposed millage rate for 2024-25 Fiscal Year

d. Set dates for budget hearings

3. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

a. June 6, 2024 Village Council Meeting Minutes

b. Ratification of payments made for the following invoices:

- Invoices paid electronically from July 1, 2024 – present day

c. JAG-C Letter of Support

4. RESOLUTIONS

a. Resolution 24-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE, BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH BROWARD COUNTY FOR OPTIONAL SERVICES FOR “KEEP

BOWARD BEAUTIFUL,” HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE AND ELECTRONICS, AND BULK

TRASH AND YARD WASTE DROP-OFF PROGRAMS; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE

SAID AGREEMENT AND ALL OTHER NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO EFFECTUATE THE INTENT OF

THE RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

THEREFOR.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS (3 minutes)



 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  Mayor Carlton Kirby 
SUNSERVE BUILDING CONFERENCE ROOM  Council Member Ray Nyhuis 
2312 WILTON MANORS, FLORIDA  Council Member Jeff Grenell 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 1, 2024  Council Member Mark DiPaolo 
6:30pm  Council Member Warren Nadeau 
  Council Member William Daugherty 
 

 

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. Annexation with Wilton Manors 

b. Lake Testing Results 

c. Resilient Florida Grant Program 

d. Security Cameras 

 

 

7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY COMMENTS 

 

8. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 



ADOPTED Y-T-D ACTUAL PROPOSED

ACTUAL BUDGET JUNE 30 BUDGET

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2024 FY 2025

REVENUES

Ad Valorem Taxes 71,000$                    71,000$                    69,347$                    67,609$                    

Other taxes     

    FPL Franchise 2,000                        2,000                        1,839                        2,000                        

Intergovernmental 7,000                        7,000                        3,994                         

     State Revenue Sharing -                               -                               -                               3,600                        

     Half-Cent Sales Tax -                               -                               -                               2,715                        

     Communication Service Tax -                               -                               -                               3,927                        

     Local Option Fuel Tax 1-6 Cent -                               -                               -                               339                           

     Local Option Fuel Tax 1-5 Cent -                               -                               -                               238                           

Other Miscellaneous     
     Miscellaneous -                               -                               751                           -                               

     TOTAL REVENUES 80,000$                    80,000$                    75,931$                    80,427$                    

 

Transfers In -                               -                               -                               -                               

Fund Balances / Reserves -                               65,000                      -                               70,000                      

TOTAL REVENUES, TRANSFERS  AND RESERVES 80,000$                    145,000$                  75,931$                    150,427$                  

EXPENDITURES

Village Attorney 18,000$                    18,000$                    23,745$                    23,427$                    

Village Administrative Services 12,000                      12,000                      9,319                        12,000                      

Accounting Services 5,000                        5,000                        -                               5,000                        

Office Rent 4,000                        4,000                        2,556                        4,000                        

Repair and Maintenance 8,000                        8,000                        1,708                        8,000                        

Trash Collection Expenses 6,000                        6,000                        4,470                        6,000                        

Advertising and Promotion 3,000                        3,000                        3,608                        3,000                        

Electric 2,000                        2,000                        1,352                        2,000                        

Insurance Costs 4,000                        4,000                        1,393                        4,000                        

Fire Protection & EMS Services 5,000                        5,000                        682                           5,000                        

Office Supplies 1,000                        1,000                        -                               1,000                        

Code Enforcement 3,000                        3,000                        -                               3,000                        

Solid Waste Recycling 2,000                        2,000                        38                             2,000                        

Web Hosting Services 2,000                        2,000                        -                               2,000                        

Election Costs - State of Florida -                               -                               -                               -                               

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 75,000$                    75,000$                    48,870$                    80,427$                    

Transfers Out -                               -                               -                               -                               

Fund Balances / Reserves -                               70,000                      -                               70,000                      

  TOTAL APPROPRIATED EXPENDITURES                                  

  TRANSFES, RESERVES & BALANCES 75,000$                    145,000$                  48,870$                    150,427$                  

VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE, FLORIDA

PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET

FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER  30, 2025



1 

 

Village of Lazy Lake Minutes 
June 6, 2024 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE 

VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 

2312 WILTON MANORS, FL. 33305 

THURSDAY, JUNE 6, 2024 

6:30PM 

 

 

Village Council 

Mayor Carlton Kirby 

Council Member Ray Nyhuis 

Council Member Jeff Grenell 

Council Member Mark DiPaolo 

Council Member Warren Nadeau 

Council Member William Daugherty 

 

1. Roll Call 

Mayor Kirby called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm, a quorum was present. 

2. Approval of Minutes 

May 2, 2024, Village Council Meeting Minutes  

Council Member Grenell made a motion to approve the May 2, 2024 meeting minutes 2nd by Council Member Nadeau. 

Motion passed 5-0 

3. Consent Agenda  

a. Ratification of payments made for the following invoices:  

- Invoices paid electronically from May 2, 2024 – present day. 

Council Member Grenell made a motion to approve, 2nd by Council Member Dipaolo. Motion passed 5-0 

 

4. New Business 

Ordinance 2023-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE, 

FLORIDA, GRANTING TO FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, ITS SUCCESSORS AND 

ASSIGNS, AN ELECTRIC FRANCHISE, IMPOSING PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS 

RELATING THERETO; PROVIDING FOR MONTHLY PAYMENTS TO THE VILLAGE OF 

LAZY LAKE; PROVIDING A REPEALER; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Council Member Nyhuis made a motion to approve the Franchise Agreement with FPL 2nd by Council Member DiPaolo. 

Motion passed 4-1.  

 

The Council requests that FPL identify which poles are FPL poles. 

Council Member Grenell voting no. Council Member Grenell does not approve adopting the ordinance until there is a 

resolution regarding the poles in the village. 

 

Council Member Nyhuis stated for the record that the poles are faulty and if something happens, FPL is responsible. 

 

5. Discussion Items 

a. Proceeding with discovery/discussions with Wilton Manors regarding a possible merger/annexation referendum. 

 

Discussion was had on approving the Mayor to continue with negotiations with Wilton Manors regarding annexation. 

Council Member Grenell recommends sending a survey to the residents of the Village to see if they are interested in 

annexing into Wilton Manors. Council Member Grenell also inquired about annexing into Fort Lauderdale. 

 

Council Member Nyhuis does not agree with spending Village funds to research annexing. He feels annexation is not 

necessary. 

Mayor Kirby explained some of the tangible benefits that are available if the City annexed. Questions were raised about 



2 

 

Village of Lazy Lake Minutes 
June 6, 2024 

 

the concerns of the lake if the Village annexed. How would the lake be affected, would the lake no longer be for public 

use.  

 

The sewer issue in the Village was discussed, with annexation this could be something Wilton Manors or Fort Lauderdale 

could oversee. 

 

Council Member Grenell made a motion to approve the Mayor moving proceeding annexation negotiations with Wilton 

Manors with the approval of the legal expenditure of a maximum of 20 hours, 2nd by Council Member Nadeau. Motion 

passed 3-1. Council Member Nyhuis voting no, Council Member Daugherty absent for the vote. 

 

Council Member Nyhuis made a motion to have the limb in the canal removed, 2nd by Council Member Nadeau. Motion 

passed 4-0. 

 

6. Village Attorney comments 

 

7. Mayor and Council comments 

 

8. Adjournment  8:03pm 

 
 



Prev 1 Next

Cfm # WDP7V-NK16Y

Cfm # WDP7Y-YLNVG

Cfm # WDLFV-QSFTL

Cfm # WCR8X-T598F

Cfm # WC4D5-RJN2D

Cfm # WC1VQ-S8P5P

Cfm # WB82F-SNR4W

Cfm # WB73Y-GH5GQ

Cfm # WB823-0DDYR

Cfm # W7RWF-R82WC

Cfm # W7RWF-R8S16

Cfm # W9M8B-M2Z6C

Showing 1 - 14 of 14 payments

Description Category Amount Deliver By Status

Coastal Waste & Recycling, Inc.
*5840

$450.00
*4602

JUL

30
Processed

Coastal Waste & Recycling, Inc.
*5840

$450.00
*4602

JUL

25
Processed

Waste Management
*2004

Utilities $1,736.80
*4602

JUL

24
Processed

Carlton Kirby $951.72
*4602

JUL

16
Processed

Solitude Lake Management
*Lake

$197.95
*4602

JUL

11
Processed

Ray Nyhuis Miscellaneous $11.21
*4602

JUL

10
Processed

Carlton Kirby $267.80
*4602

JUL

2
Processed

Solitude Lake Management
*Lake

$197.95
*4602

JUL

2
Processed

Tedra Allen
Adminstrative Assistant

Miscellaneous $186.60
*4602

JUL

2
Processed

Tedra Allen
Adminstrative Assistant

Miscellaneous $850.00
*4602

JUL

1
Processed

Wilton Executive Suites, LLC
SunServe Building
*hter

$319.50
*4602

JUL

1
Processed

Coastal Waste & Recycling, Inc.
*5840

$2,250.00
*4602

JUN

26
Processed

Total $9,879.87 Pending, Processing, and Processed
payments only, including any fees

Date Range

From

6/6/2024
To

All

Filter By

Specific date range Up To 24 months

Numeric date starting
with the month



7/31/24, 8:14 AM Online Bill Payment | Activity

https://bank.truist.com/web/taplp/billpay 1/2

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);


Cfm # W9F0L-7JSWK

Cfm # W5BG9-J1ZWK

Prev 1 Next

Description Category Amount Deliver By Status

Ottinot Law P.A $1,840.00
*4602

JUN

25
Processed

Tedra Allen
Adminstrative Assistant

Miscellaneous $170.34
*4602

JUN

7
Processed

Total $9,879.87 Pending, Processing, and Processed
payments only, including any fees

Showing 1 - 14 of 14 payments

7/31/24, 8:14 AM Online Bill Payment | Activity

https://bank.truist.com/web/taplp/billpay 2/2

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);


Tedra Allen <admin@lazylakefl.us>

Response Requested - JAG-C Letter of Support from Mayor (51% Letter)
2 messages

Scott, Deborah <DASCOTT@broward.org> Mon, Jul 29, 2024 at 9:37 PM
Cc: "Scott, Deborah" <DASCOTT@broward.org>

Dear Mayor and City Officials:

 

The Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant-Countywide (JAG-C) is a
program administered by the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), Office of Justice
Programs (OJP) and in Florida by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement
(FDLE). Program funds can be used to support a broad range of activities to prevent
and control crime and to improve the criminal justice system throughout the County.

 

The Broward County Human Services Department is the coordinating entity for the
JAG-C program for Federal Fiscal Year 2023 (FFY2023). Final approval of JAG-C
projects is under the purview of FDLE. For the upcoming fiscal year, Broward County
will utilize the $432,599 in JAG-C funds for countywide projects listed on the
attached sample letter of support.

 

In order to continue this funding, we must submit supporting letters (known as “51%
letters”) to FDLE from the Mayors of local units of government. The 51% letters must
represent at least 51% of the units of government, which also represent at least 51%
of the population residing in the county. These "51% letters" are required by FDLE
as part of the JAG-C application process. We respectfully request your support of
the JAG-C projects by completing and signing the 51% letter.

 

A sample letter is attached for your convenience. Please print the 51% letter on your
City’s letterhead and have it signed by the Mayor. Note: if someone other than
the Mayor signs the letter, FDLE requires an additional document indicating this
person’s signatory authority. Kindly return a pdf copy of the signed letter via
email to my attention, by Friday, August 9, 2024.

 

PLEASE DO NOT SEND THE LETTER DIRECTLY TO CODY MENACOF.

 

7/31/24, 8:30 AM lazylakefl.us Mail - Response Requested - JAG-C Letter of Support from Mayor (51% Letter)

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=018fb9ed15&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1805966112534096195&simpl=msg-f:180596611253409619… 1/3



If you or your staff have questions or need additional information, feel free to contact
me at 954-357-5899 or dascott@broward.org.

 

We look forward to working on these JAG-C projects in efforts to mitigate crime in
Broward County.

 

Thank you for advance for your support.

 

Deborah
 

 

Deborah A. Scott, MS

Program/Project Coordinator, Senior

Community Partnerships Division

Children’s Services Administration

115 S Andrews Avenue, Room A300

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

O: (954) 357-5899

C: (954) 459-8486

dascott@broward.org

 

CPD Website

Contract Services Provider Handbook

Service Delivery Models

 

Explore Broward County’s Human Services Department

CLICK to Find A Service

 

7/31/24, 8:30 AM lazylakefl.us Mail - Response Requested - JAG-C Letter of Support from Mayor (51% Letter)

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=018fb9ed15&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1805966112534096195&simpl=msg-f:180596611253409619… 2/3

mailto:dascott@broward.org
https://www.broward.org/HumanServices/CommunityPartnerships/Pages/Default.aspx
https://www.broward.org/HumanServices/CommunityPartnerships/Pages/Default.aspx
https://www.google.com/maps/search/115+S+Andrews+Avenue,+Room+A300+%0D%0A+Fort+Lauderdale,+FL+33301?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/115+S+Andrews+Avenue,+Room+A300+%0D%0A+Fort+Lauderdale,+FL+33301?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:dascott@broward.org
https://www.broward.org/CommunityPartnerships/Pages/Default.aspx
https://www.broward.org/CommunityPartnerships/Documents/ProviderHandbook%202022-2023%20updated%20091523.pdf
https://www.broward.org/CommunityPartnerships/Pages/ContractServicesProviderHandbook.aspx#Provider%20Handbook
https://www.broward.org/HumanServices/Pages/FindAService.aspx


Under Florida law, most e-mail messages to or from Broward County employees or officials are
public records, available to any person upon request, absent an exemption. Therefore, any e-mail
message to or from the County, inclusive of e-mail addresses contained therein, may be subject to
public disclosure.

Sample 51% Letter - Broward County JAG-C.docx
19K

Tedra Allen <admin@lazylakefl.us> Tue, Jul 30, 2024 at 12:13 PM
To: Carlton Kirby <ckirby@lazylakefl.us>, Pamala Ryan <pamala@ottinotlawpa.com>

FYI...
[Quoted text hidden]

Sample 51% Letter - Broward County JAG-C.docx
19K

7/31/24, 8:30 AM lazylakefl.us Mail - Response Requested - JAG-C Letter of Support from Mayor (51% Letter)

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=018fb9ed15&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1805966112534096195&simpl=msg-f:180596611253409619… 3/3

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=018fb9ed15&view=att&th=1910149c65fce943&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=018fb9ed15&view=att&th=1910149c65fce943&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=018fb9ed15&view=att&th=191046b5c58dcb0d&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=191046b32984d57a6992&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=018fb9ed15&view=att&th=191046b5c58dcb0d&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=191046b32984d57a6992&safe=1&zw


 
 
 
August 1, 2024 
 
Mr. Cody Menacof 
Bureau Chief 
Office of Criminal Justice Grants 
Department of Law Enforcement 
P.O. Box 1489 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1489 
 
Dear Mr. Menacof: 
 
In compliance with State of Florida Rule 11D-9, F.A.C., the Village of Lazy Lake approves the 
distribution of $432,599.00 of Federal Fiscal Year 2023 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 
Grant-Countywide (JAG-C) Program funds for the following projects in Broward County: 
 

Recipient Project Purpose Amount 

 
Broward County 

 
Planning, Evaluation, Technology Improvements (PETI)  
 
Juvenile Assessment Center Facility Upgrades 
 
Homeless Outreach Computer Equipment 

 
$46,692.00 

 
$277,085.00 

 
$108,822.00 

 Total Amount $432,599.00 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name of Chief Official 
 
_________________________________ 
Title 



 
 
Public Works Department 
SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICES 
1 N. University Drive, Suite 400 • Plantation, Florida 33324 • 954-765-4999 • FAX 954-577-2391 
 

Broward County Board of County Commissioners 
Mark D. Bogen • Lamar P. Fisher • Beam Furr • Steve Geller • Robert McKinzie • Nan H. Rich • Hazelle P. Rogers • Tim Ryan • Michael Udine  

www.broward.org 
 
 

June 24, 2024 
             VIA EMAIL 
 
 
To:  Broward County Municipal Managers  
 
RE:  Interlocal Agreement for Optional County Services 
 
Dear Municipal Managers: 
 
On June 4, 2024, the Broward County Board of County Commissioners approved the attached 
shell Interlocal Agreement (ILA), which enables municipalities to participate in any or all of the 
following three County solid waste and recycling programs: 
 

• The Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Program: enables residents of 
participating government entities to dispose of bulk trash and yard waste at Broward 
County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers. 
 

• The Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program: provides disposal 
services and electronics processing services to residents of participating government 
entities at Broward County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers and through various remote 
collection events. 
 

• The Keep Broward Beautiful Program: provides for litter prevention, beautification, 
clean-up efforts, and coordination of volunteers for the Adopt-a-Street Program. 

 
To allow for budgetary planning, participating government entities should execute and return the 
ILA by August 15, 2024. The ILA will become effective on the date it is fully executed and will 
continue through September 30, 2026 (“Initial Term”), unless otherwise terminated or extended 
as provided in the Agreement. Upon expiration of the Initial Term, the Term shall be extended 
automatically for three (3) additional one (1) year terms (each an “Extension Term”), unless either 
Party provides written notice to the other Party, in accordance with the “Notices” section of the 
Agreement, at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the end of the then current Term. 
 
If your municipality would like to participate in these optional services, please complete the 
following pages: 
 

• Page 5 – Mark the optional programs in which your municipality is electing to participate. 
 
• Page 12 – Fill in the contact information for Notices.  
 



 
Broward County Municipal Manager  
ILA for Optional County Services 
Page 2 
June 24, 2024 

 
• Page 17 – Execute and return the completed ILA via email to: 

Eliner Knight at eknight@broward.org 
with a copy to Notosha Austin at naustin@broward.org 

 
Once your ILA has been fully executed by the County, a completely executed version will be 
returned to you via email. 
 
If your municipality requires fully executed hard copies with original signatures, please send your 
completed original(s), signed by your municipality’s officials to: 
 

Solid Waste and Recycling Services 
Attn:  Notosha Austin, Director 
1 N University Drive, Suite 400 
Plantation, FL 33324 

 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 954-474-1849 or Eliner Knight at 
eknight@broward.org 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Notosha Austin 
Director 
 
 
Attachment 
 
 
c. Monica Cepero, County Administrator, Broward County 
 Kevin Kelleher, Assistant County Administrator, Broward County 

Trevor Fisher, Director, Public Works Department, Broward County 
Eliner Knight, Administrative Specialist, Solid Waste and Recycling Services 

mailto:eknight@broward.org
mailto:naustin@broward.org
mailto:eknight@broward.org


 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE, BROWARD 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH 

BROWARD COUNTY FOR OPTIONAL SERVICES FOR “KEEP BOWARD 

BEAUTIFUL,” HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE AND ELECTRONICS, 

AND BULK TRASH AND YARD WASTE DROP-OFF PROGRAMS; 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENT AND 

ALL OTHER NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO EFFECTUATE THE INTENT 

OF THE RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE THEREFOR. 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lazy Lake (“Village”) is committed to providing fiscally and 

environmentally responsible services to its residents; and 

WHEREAS, Broward County’s Solid Waste and Recycling Services provides multiple 

programs to aid residents and municipalities in fostering a safe and sustainable environment 

including its: 

(i) “Keep Broward Beautiful” Program, which aids with litter prevention, beautification, 

and clean-up efforts; 

(ii) Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program, which provides disposal 

services and electronics processing services at County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers 

and at Remote Collection Events; and 

(iii)  Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Program, which enables residents to dispose of 

the Bulk Trash and Yard Waste at Broward County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers. 

WHEREAS, Broward County is willing to provide municipalities in Broward County with 

the option to participate in any of or in all of the programs at a minimal cost as set forth in Exhibit 

“D” to the Interlocal Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, the Village wishes to receive, on behalf of its residents, the option to 

participate in any of or in all of the programs by entering into an Interlocal Agreement with 

Broward County for Optional Services for “Keep Broward Beautiful,” Household Hazardous 

Waste and Electronics, and Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Programs (“Interlocal 

Agreement”).  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF THE 

VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

Section 1.      The foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein.  



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 2. The Interlocal Agreement for Optional Services for “Keep Broward Beautiful,” 

Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics, and Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Programs 

is hereby approved as attached in Exhibit “1” . 

Section 3. The Mayor is authorized to execute the Interlocal Agreement and all other 

necessary documents needed to effectuate the intent of this Resolution.  

Section 4. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or other part of this 

Resolution be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not 

affect the validity of this Resolution as a whole or any portion or part thereof, other than the part 

so declared to be invalid. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage by the Village 

Council and signature by the Mayor. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL this ____ day of _________,  2024. 

 

 

Council Member   Voice Vote        Absent 

Ray Nyhuis    Yea ___     Nay ___   ___   

Jeff Grenell    Yea ___     Nay ___   ___ 

Mark DiPaolo    Yea ___     Nay ___   ___ 

Warren Nadeau   Yea ___     Nay ___   ___ 

William Daugherty   Yea ___     Nay ___   ___ 

 

 

SIGNED BY THE MAYOR this _______ day of _____________,  2024. 

 

 

      __________________________ 

      Carlton Kirby 

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

___________________________  ____________________________ 

Tedra Allen      Pamala H. Ryan 

Village Administrative Assistant  Village Attorney 

 

 

 
   

 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 1 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN BROWARD COUNTY AND THE VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE FOR OPTIONAL SERVICES FOR  

“KEEP BROWARD BEAUTIFUL,”  
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE AND ELECTRONICS, AND  

BULK TRASH AND YARD WASTE  
DROP-OFF PROGRAMS 

 
This interlocal agreement (“Agreement”) is between Broward County, a political 

subdivision of the State of Florida (“County”), and the Village of Lazy Lake, a municipal 
corporation incorporated under Florida law (“Municipality”) (each a “Party” and collectively 
referred to as the “Parties”).  
 

RECITALS 

A. County policy safeguards the health, welfare, and natural environment of its 
residents and ensures accessible, seamlessly integrated investments in sustainable practices and 
environmental protection. 

B. County’s Solid Waste and Recycling Services provides multiple programs to aid 
residents and municipalities in fostering a safe and sustainable environment including: 

(i) County’s “Keep Broward Beautiful” Program, as defined in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, aids with litter prevention, beautification, and 
clean-up efforts; 

(ii) County’s Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program, as defined 
in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein, provides disposal services and 
electronics processing services at County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers and at Remote 
Collection Events; and 

(iii) County’s Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Program, as defined in 
Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein, enables Residents to dispose of the 
Bulk Trash and Yard Waste at County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers. 

C. County is willing to provide, and Municipality wishes to receive on behalf of its 
Residents, the option to participate in any of or all these programs pursuant to this Agreement. 

D. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, as 
may be amended from time to time, and prior to its effectiveness shall be filed as required by 
Section 163.01(11), Florida Statutes. 

Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 2 

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1. Adopt-a-Street means a collaboration between County, Municipality, and volunteer 
groups, in which residents volunteer to remove litter from an adopted street in Municipality as 
part of the “Keep Broward Beautiful” Program. 

1.2. Applicable Law means all applicable laws, codes, advisory circulars, rules, regulations, 
or ordinances of any federal, state, county, municipal, or other governmental entity, as may be 
amended.  

1.3. Board means the Board of County Commissioners of Broward County, Florida.  

1.4. Bulk Trash means large items that are disposed of by Residents and may require special 
handling including, without limitation, tires or construction and demolition debris like carpet, 
concrete, drywall, glass, insulation, mirrors, and other materials resulting from minor home 
improvements. 

1.5. Code means the Broward County Code of Ordinances. 

1.6. County Administrator means the administrative head of County appointed by the Board. 

1.7. County Attorney means the chief legal counsel for County appointed by the Board. 

1.8. County’s Contract Administrator means the Director of Solid Waste and Recycling 
Services, including any interim or acting Director, the Assistant Director of Solid Waste and 
Recycling Services, or such other person designated by the Director of Solid Waste and Recycling 
Services in writing. The primary responsibilities of County’s Contract Administrator under this 
Agreement are to coordinate and communicate with Municipality, through the Municipal 
Contract Administrator, and to manage and supervise execution and completion of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement as set forth herein 

1.9. Electronic Waste means end-of-life or unwanted electronic devices that are disposed of 
by Residents, including, but not limited to, computers, monitors, televisions, printers, fax 
machines, and copiers. 

1.10.  Household Hazardous Waste means the following as disposed of by Residents: paints; 
Used Oil; automotive, marine, or other lead acid batteries; and tires. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the Parties hereby agree that the definition of Household Hazardous Waste shall be 
consistent with the definition for that term in County’s agreement(s) with contractor(s) operating 
any Residential Drop-Off Center, as may be amended or replaced from time to time.  

1.11. Municipal Contract Administrator means the individual designated by Municipality in 
writing to coordinate and communicate with County, through County’s Contract Administrator, 
and to manage and supervise execution and completion of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement as set forth herein. 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 3 

1.12. Prohibited Waste includes the following: (a) putrescible waste; (b) any air contaminant 
waste, including without limitation, dust, fumes, mist, smoke, other particulate matter, vapor, 
gas, odorous substances, or any combination thereof; (c) any commercial solid waste, including 
without limitation, trash or other discarded items resulting from the activities of commercial or 
industrial establishments; (d) any excessive form of matter or debris resulting from land clearing, 
land development, or major building demolition debris; (e) any “Biomedical Waste” as defined in 
Section 27-214 of the Code and in Section 403.703, Florida Statutes, as either may be amended; 
(f) any “Garbage” as defined in Section 27-214 of the Code, including without limitation, kitchen 
and table food waste, as may be amended; (g) automobiles, boats, or internal combustion 
engines; (h) any other waste, debris, substance, constituent, object, or material that is 
determined to be hazardous, toxic, corrosive, reactive, ignitable, explosive, radioactive, 
infectious, carcinogenic, teratogenic, or mutagenic (collectively, “Hazardous”) pursuant to the 
Broward County Charter, Chapter 27 of the Code, Chapter 403, Florida Statutes, Fla. Admin. Code 
Chapter 62-730, the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1321, et seq., the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 
U.S.C. § 300f, et seq., Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), 42 U.S.C. § 6901, et 
seq., Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), 42 
U.S.C. § 9601, et seq., Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2601, et seq., 40 C.F.R. Parts 239 
through 374, 40 C.F.R. Parts 700 through 799, 49 C.F.R. § 172.101, any rule or regulation 
promulgated pursuant to the foregoing authorities, or is otherwise determined to be Hazardous 
or prohibited by state or federal law, as any of the aforementioned may be amended, or is 
determined to be Hazardous at any time by the United States Environmental Protection Agency; 
(i) anything classified as “universal waste” pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 273, as may be amended, 
with the exception of commercially available batteries disposed of by Residents; or (j) any waste, 
debris, substance, constituent, object, or material that otherwise poses a threat to public health 
or safety. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties hereby agree that the definition of 
Prohibited Waste shall be consistent with the definition for that term in County’s agreement(s) 
with contractor(s) operating any Residential Drop-Off Center, as may be amended or replaced 
from time to time. Prohibited Waste does not include Household Hazardous Waste. 

1.13. Recycled Paint Program means a County operated service, under the Household 
Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program, in which multiple colors of latex paint that have been 
collected are blended, recycled into new colors, and provided to Municipality to dispense to 
Residents free of charge. 

1.14. Remote Collection Events mean events periodically scheduled and hosted in cooperation 
with County to provide Residents with opportunities to dispose of Household Hazardous Waste 
and Electronic Waste. 

1.15. Resident means any individual whose primary place of residence is located within 
Municipality. The term does not include commercial enterprises, businesses, or corporations 
whether for profit or not-for-profit. 

1.16. Residential Drop-Off Center or RDOC means the permanent facilities identified by County 
for the purpose of receipt and processing of RDOC-Acceptable Waste. County may amend which 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 4 

RDOC are available to Municipality or Residents at any time by written notice provided by 
County’s Contract Administrator. 

1.17. RDOC-Acceptable Waste means the following types of solid waste, all of which must have 
been generated at a Resident’s dwelling and transported to an RDOC by Residents and also be of 
the type and consistency to be lawfully accepted at any RDOC under Applicable Law and permits:  
(a) non-putrescible waste consisting of non-combustible materials in a solid or semi-solid state; 
(b) large household appliances including, without limitation, drying machines, microwave ovens, 
ranges, refrigerators, stoves, washing machines, water heaters, and other similar domestic 
appliances, and household furniture (i.e., white goods); (c) Yard Waste; (d) wooden items 
including fencing or lumber; and (e) Bulk Trash. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties 
hereby agree that the definition of RDOC-Acceptable Waste shall be consistent with the 
definition for that term in County’s agreement(s) with contractor(s) operating any Residential 
Drop-Off Center, as may be amended or replaced from time to time. RDOC-Acceptable Waste 
does not include any Prohibited Waste. 

1.18. Services means the County-provided optional service programs selected by Municipality 
in Article 3 of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all obligations, responsibilities, labor, 
equipment, and materials needed from both Parties to implement such programs, whether 
described in this Agreement or any exhibit attached hereto.  

1.19. Used Oil means oil generated at a Resident’s dwelling that has been refined from crude 
oil or synthetic oil and, because of use, storage, or handling, has become unsuitable for its original 
purpose due to the presence of impurities or loss properties, but that may be suitable for further 
economically recyclable purposes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties hereby agree that 
the definition of Used Oil shall be consistent with the definition for that term in County’s 
agreement(s) with contractor(s) operating any Residential Drop-Off Center, as may be amended 
or replaced from time to time. 

1.20. Yard Waste means vegetative matter resulting from landscaping maintenance and land 
clearing operations and includes associated rocks and soils. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Parties hereby agree that the definition of Yard Waste shall be the same as the definition for 
“Yard Trash” in Section 403.703, Florida Statutes, as may be amended. 

ARTICLE 2. EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A “Keep Broward Beautiful” Program 
Exhibit B Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program 
Exhibit C Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Program 
Exhibit D Annual Costs of County Programs 
  



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 5 

ARTICLE 3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

3.1. Municipality commits to participating in the following Services, indicated by checking 
“Yes” below: 
 

(a) “Keep Broward Beautiful” Program, as defined in Exhibit A: 
x  Yes 

 No 
 

(b) Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program, as defined in Exhibit B: 
x  Yes 

 No 
 

(c) Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Program, as defined in Exhibit C: 
x  Yes 

 No 
 
3.2. Prior to March 1 of any year, either the Municipal Contract Administrator or County’s 
Contract Administrator may add or delete, with or without cause, the Services selected by 
Municipality as referenced in Section 3.1 above for the following Fiscal Year. All such additions 
or deletions must be in writing in accordance with the “Notices” section of this Agreement. 

3.3. The Parties shall perform all work identified in this Agreement and, as applicable, the 
Services described in Exhibits A, B, and C (“Scope of Services”). The Parties agree that the Scope 
of Services is a description of the Parties' obligations and responsibilities and is deemed to include 
preliminary considerations and prerequisites, and all labor, materials, equipment, and tasks 
which are such an inseparable part of the work described that exclusion would render 
performance by both Municipality and County impractical, illogical, or unconscionable. 
Municipality further commits that it shall not dispose of, direct or cause the disposal of, or 
facilitate disposal by any Resident of Prohibit Waste at any Residential Drop-Off Center or at 
Remote Collection Events. 

3.4. Except as provided in Section 3.2 above, neither the Municipal Contract Administrator nor 
County’s Contract Administrator has authority to make changes that would increase, decrease, 
or otherwise modify the Scope of Services to be provided under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4. TERM AND TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

4.1. Term. This Agreement begins on the date it is fully executed by the Parties (“Effective 
Date”) and continues through September 30, 2026 (“Initial Term”), unless otherwise terminated 
or extended as provided in this Agreement. The Initial Term and any Extension Term(s) as defined 
in this article are collectively referred to as the “Term.” 

4.2. Extensions. Upon expiration of the Initial Term, the Term shall be extended automatically 
for three (3) additional one (1) year terms (each an “Extension Term”), unless either Party 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 6 

provides written notice to the other Party in accordance with the “Notices” section of this 
Agreement at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the end of the then current Term.  

 
4.3. Fiscal Year. The continuation of this Agreement beyond the end of any County fiscal year 
is subject to both the appropriation and the availability of funds pursuant to Chapter 129 and, if 
applicable, Chapter 212, Florida Statutes.  

4.4. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence for Municipality’s performance of the duties, 
obligations, and responsibilities required by this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 5. PAYMENT 

5.1. County shall invoice Municipality quarterly for the Services. Municipality shall pay to 
County the entire amount due on the invoice within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. During 
Fiscal Year 2024, the quarterly payment owed by Municipality shall be as shown on Exhibit D, 
Annual Costs of County Programs, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

5.2. County shall prorate the amount included in the first quarterly invoice to Municipality 
based on the Effective Date.  

5.3. After the first invoice, County may, in its sole discretion, increase the quarterly amount 
owed by Municipality by an amount based on the actual cost of Services annually during the Term 
(“Annual Escalation”). The Annual Escalation shall be determined by County’s Contract 
Administrator based on increases in direct and indirect costs to County to perform the Scope of 
Services. 

5.4. Municipality shall remit all payments to County to: 
 

Broward County Solid Waste and Recycling Services  
1 North University Drive, Suite 400  
Plantation, FL 33324 

 
ARTICLE 6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

6.1. Representation of Authority. Municipality represents and warrants that this Agreement 
constitutes the legal, valid, binding, and enforceable obligation of Municipality, and that neither 
the execution nor performance of this Agreement constitutes a breach of any agreement that 
Municipality has with any third party or violates Applicable Law. Municipality further represents 
and warrants that execution of this Agreement is within Municipality’s legal powers, and each 
individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Municipality is duly authorized by all necessary 
and appropriate action to do so on behalf of Municipality and does so with full legal authority. 

6.2. Nondiscrimination. The Parties shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, 
religion, national origin, disability, age, marital status, political affiliation, sexual orientation, 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 7 

pregnancy, or gender identity and expression in the performance of this Agreement. Municipality 
shall include the foregoing or similar language in its contracts with all contractors assisting 
Municipality in providing the Services, except that any project assisted by the U.S. Department 
of Transportation funds shall comply with the nondiscrimination requirements in 49 C.F.R. Parts 
23 and 26. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements is a material breach of this 
Agreement, which may result in the termination of this Agreement or such other remedy as the 
non-breaching Party deems appropriate. Furthermore, the Parties shall not unlawfully 
discriminate against any person in their respective operations and activities or in their use or 
expenditure of funds in fulfilling their respective obligations under this Agreement and shall not 
otherwise unlawfully discriminate in violation of Chapter 16½ of the Code. The Parties shall 
affirmatively comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) 
in the course of fulfilling their obligations under this Agreement, including Titles I and II of the 
ADA (regarding nondiscrimination on the basis of disability), and all applicable regulations, 
guidelines, and standards. In addition, the Parties shall take affirmative steps to prevent 
discrimination in employment against disabled persons. 

6.3. Public Entity Crime Act. Municipality represents that it is familiar with the requirements 
and prohibitions under the Public Entity Crime Act, Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, and 
represents that its entry into this Agreement will not violate that Act. Municipality further 
represents that there has been no determination that it committed a “public entity crime” as 
defined by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, and that it has not been formally charged with 
committing an act defined as a “public entity crime” regardless of the amount of money involved 
or whether Municipality has been placed on the convicted vendor list. 

6.4. Claims Against Municipality. Municipality represents and warrants that there is no action 
or proceeding, at law or in equity, before any court, mediator, arbitrator, governmental or other 
board or official, pending or, to the knowledge of Municipality, threatened against or affecting 
Municipality, the outcome of which may (a) affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, 
(b) materially and adversely affect the authority or ability of Municipality to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement, or (c) have a material and adverse effect on the consolidated 
financial condition or results of operations of Municipality or on the ability of Municipality to 
conduct its business as presently conducted or as proposed or contemplated to be conducted. 

6.5. Breach of Representations. Municipality acknowledges that County is materially relying 
on the representations, warranties, and certifications of Municipality stated in this article, and 
County shall be entitled to exercise any or all of the following remedies if any such 
representation, warranty, or certification is untrue: (a) recovery of damages incurred, and (b) 
termination of this Agreement without any further liability to Municipality. 

ARTICLE 7. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

7.1. Sovereign Immunity. Except to the extent sovereign immunity may be deemed waived by 
entering into this Agreement, nothing herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign 
immunity by County or Municipality nor shall anything included herein be construed as consent 
by County or Municipality to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of this Agreement.  



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 8 

7.2. Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Parties acknowledge that there are no third-party 
beneficiaries to this Agreement and that no third party shall be entitled to assert a right or claim 
against either of them based upon this Agreement. 

7.3. Indemnification. Municipality shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend County and all 
of County’s current, past, and future officers, agents, and employees (collectively, “Indemnified 
Party”) from and against any and all causes of action, demands, claims, losses, liabilities, and 
expenditures of any kind, including attorneys’ fees, court costs, and expenses, including through 
the conclusion of any appellate proceedings, raised or asserted by any person or entity not a 
party to this Agreement, and caused or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by any breach 
of this Agreement by Municipality, or any intentional, reckless, or negligent act or omission of 
Municipality, its officers, employees, or agents, arising from, relating to, or in connection with 
this Agreement (collectively, a “Claim”). Claims shall include, but not be limited to: (a) alleged, 
threatened, or actual presence or release of Prohibited Waste on, above, or under any County-
owned property or lands where Remote Collection Events were held; (b) any past, present, or 
threatened injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural resources in connection with the Services; 
and (c) any past, present, or threatened noncompliance of Applicable Law, including any 
environmental laws. If any Claim is brought against an Indemnified Party, Municipality shall, upon 
written notice from County, defend each Indemnified Party with counsel satisfactory to County 
or, at County’s option, pay for an attorney selected by the County Attorney to defend the 
Indemnified Party.  

7.4. Contractors. If Municipality contracts with a third party (“Contractor”) to provide any of 
the Services, any contract with such Contractor must include the following provision: 

Indemnification:  Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Broward County 
(“County”), and all of County’s current, past, and future officers, agents, and employees 
(collectively, “Indemnified Party”) from and against any and all causes of action, demands, 
claims, losses, liabilities, and expenditures of any kind, including attorneys’ fees, court 
costs, and expenses, including through the conclusion of any appellate proceedings, 
raised or asserted by any person or entity not a party to this agreement, and caused or 
alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by any breach of this agreement by Contractor, 
or by any intentional, reckless, or negligent act or omission of Contractor, its officers, 
employees, or agents, arising from, relating to, or in connection with this Agreement 
(collectively, a “Claim”). If any Claim is brought against an Indemnified Party, Contractor 
shall, upon written notice from County, defend each Indemnified Party with counsel 
satisfactory to County or, at County’s option, pay for an attorney selected by the County 
Attorney to defend the Indemnified Party. The obligations of this paragraph shall survive 
the expiration or earlier termination of this agreement. 

7.5. Defenses. Notwithstanding anything in this article to the contrary, nothing in this article 
limits the defenses available to Municipality (including under Section 768.28, Florida Statutes) in 
the defense of an Indemnified Party pursuant to the obligations of Section 7.3, above. 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services      Page 9 

7.6. Survival. The obligations of this article shall survive the expiration or earlier termination 
of this Agreement.  

ARTICLE 8. INSURANCE 

8.1. Municipality is a governmental entity and is fully responsible for the acts and omissions 
of its agents or employees, subject to any applicable limitations of Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes. 

8.2. Upon request by County, Municipality must provide County with written verification of 
liability protection that meets or exceeds any requirements of Florida law. If Municipality holds 
any excess liability coverage, Municipality must ensure that Broward County is named as an 
additional insured and certificate holder under such excess liability policy and provide evidence 
of same to County.

8.3. If Municipality maintains broader coverage or higher limits than the minimum coverage 
required under Florida law, County shall be entitled to such broader coverage and higher limits 
on a primary and non-contributory basis. County’s insurance requirements shall apply to 
Municipality's self-insurance. 

8.4. In the event Municipality contracts with a third-party to provide any of Services set forth 
herein, Municipality shall require that each third-party procure and maintain insurance coverage 
that adequately covers each third-party's exposure based on the services provided by that third-
party. Municipality must ensure that all such third-party contractors name "Broward County" as 
an additional insured and certificate holder under applicable insurance policies. Municipality shall 
not permit any third-party to provide services until the insurance requirements of the contractor 
under this section are met. If requested by County, Municipality shall furnish evidence of 
insurance of all such third-parties. 

8.5. County reserves the right, but not the responsibility, to periodically review any and all 
insurance policies and to reasonably adjust the limits and/or types of coverage required herein, 
from time to time throughout the term of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 9. TERMINATION 

9.1. Termination for Cause. This Agreement may be terminated for cause by the aggrieved 
Party if the Party in breach has not corrected the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of 
written notice from the aggrieved Party identifying the breach. This Agreement may be 
terminated for cause by the County Administrator for reasons including, but not limited to, any 
of the following: 

9.1.1. Municipality’s failure to suitably or continuously perform Services in a manner 
calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives in this Agreement; or 

9.1.2. Municipality’s failure (whether negligent or intentional) to submit payment to 
County for Services. 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 10 
 

If County erroneously, improperly, or unjustifiably terminates this Agreement for cause, such 
termination shall be deemed a termination for convenience pursuant to Section 9.2 effective 
thirty (30) days after such notice was provided. 

 
9.2. Termination for Convenience; Other Termination. This Agreement may also be 
terminated for convenience by the Board with at least thirty (30) days advance written notice to 
Municipality. Municipality acknowledges that it has received good, valuable, and sufficient 
consideration for County’s right to terminate this Agreement for convenience including in the 
form of County’s obligation to provide advance notice to Municipality of such termination in 
accordance with this section. This Agreement may also be terminated by the County 
Administrator upon such notice as the County Administrator deems appropriate under the 
circumstances if the County Administrator determines that termination is necessary to protect 
the public health, safety, or welfare.  

9.3. Notice of termination shall be provided in accordance with the “Notices” section of this 
Agreement except that notice of termination by the County Administrator to protect the public 
health, safety, or welfare may be oral notice that shall be promptly confirmed in writing.  

9.4. In addition to any termination rights stated in this Agreement, County shall be entitled to 
seek any and all contractual or other remedies available at law or in equity including recovery of 
costs incurred by County due to Municipality’s failure to comply with any term(s) of this 
Agreement.  

ARTICLE 10. MISCELLANEOUS 

10.1. Contract Administrator Authority. County’s Contract Administrator and Municipal 
Contract Administrator are authorized to coordinate and communicate to manage and supervise 
the performance of this Agreement. Municipality acknowledges that County’s Contract 
Administrator has no authority to make changes that would increase, decrease, or otherwise 
materially modify the Scope of Services except as expressly set forth in this Agreement or, to the 
extent applicable, in the Broward County Procurement Code. Unless expressly stated otherwise 
in this Agreement or otherwise set forth in the Code or the Broward County Administrative Code, 
County’s Contract Administrator may exercise ministerial authority in connection with the day-
to-day management of this Agreement. County’s Contract Administrator may also approve in 
writing minor modifications to the Scope of Services that do not increase the total cost to County 
or waive any rights of County.  

10.2. Public Records. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, any action taken 
by County in compliance with, or in a good faith attempt to comply with, the requirements of 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement. If Municipality is 
acting on behalf of County as stated in Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, Municipality shall:  

10.2.1. Keep and maintain public records required by County to perform the Services;  



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 11 
 

10.2.2. Upon request from County, provide County with a copy of the requested records 
or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time and at a cost that 
does not exceed that provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 
by Applicable Law;  

10.2.3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by Applicable Law for the 
duration of this Agreement and after completion or termination of this Agreement if the 
records are not transferred to County; and 

10.2.4. Upon expiration of the Term or termination of this Agreement, transfer to County, 
at no cost, all public records in possession of Municipality or keep and maintain public 
records required by County to perform the services. If Municipality transfers the records 
to County, Municipality shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt. If Municipality keeps and maintains the public records, 
Municipality shall meet all requirements of Applicable Law for retaining public records. 
All records stored electronically must be provided to County upon request in a format 
that is compatible with the information technology systems of County.  

If Municipality receives a request for public records regarding this Agreement or the Services, 
Municipality must immediately notify County’s Contract Administrator in writing and provide all 
requested records to County to enable County to timely respond to the public records request. 
County will respond to all such public records requests.  

Municipality must separately submit and conspicuously label as “RESTRICTED MATERIAL – DO 
NOT PRODUCE” any material (a) that Municipality contends constitutes or contains its trade 
secrets under Chapter 688, Florida Statutes, or (b) for which Municipality asserts a right to 
withhold from public disclosure as confidential or otherwise exempt from production under 
Florida public records laws (including Chapter 119, Florida Statutes) (collectively, “Restricted 
Material”). In addition, Municipality must, simultaneous with the submission of any Restricted 
Material, provide a sworn declaration or affidavit in a form acceptable to County from a person 
with personal knowledge attesting that the Restricted Material constitutes trade secrets or is 
otherwise exempt or confidential under Florida public records laws, including citing the 
applicable Florida statute and specifying the factual basis for each such claim. Upon request by 
County, Municipality must promptly identify the specific applicable statutory section that 
protects any particular document. If a third party submits a request to County for records 
designated by Municipality as Restricted Material, County shall refrain from disclosing such 
material unless otherwise ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction, authorized in writing by 
Municipality, or the claimed exemption is waived. Any failure by Municipality to strictly comply 
with the requirements of this section shall constitute Municipality’s waiver of County’s obligation 
to treat the records as Restricted Material. Municipality must indemnify and defend County and 
its employees and agents from any and all claims, causes of action, losses, fines, penalties, 
damages, judgments, and liabilities of any kind, including attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses, and 
court costs, relating to nondisclosure of Restricted Material in response to a third-party request. 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 12 
 

IF MUNICIPALITY HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO MUNICIPALITY’S DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF 
PUBLIC RECORDS AT 954-474-1849, EKNIGHT@BROWARD.ORG, 1 NORTH 
UNIVERSITY DRIVE, SUITE 400-B, PLANTATION, FL 33324. 
 
10.3. Regulatory Capacity. Notwithstanding the fact that County is a political subdivision with 
certain regulatory authority, County’s performance under this Agreement is as a Party to this 
Agreement and not in its regulatory capacity. If County exercises its regulatory authority, the 
exercise of such authority and the enforcement of Applicable Law shall have occurred pursuant 
to County’s regulatory authority as a governmental body separate and apart from this 
Agreement, and shall not be attributable in any manner to County as a Party to this Agreement.  

10.4. Notices. Unless otherwise stated herein, for notice to a Party to be effective under this 
Agreement, notice must be sent via U.S. first-class mail, hand delivery, or commercial overnight 
delivery, each with a contemporaneous copy via email, to the addresses listed below and shall 
be effective upon mailing or hand delivery (provided the contemporaneous email is also sent). 
Addresses may be changed by the applicable Party giving notice of such change in accordance 
with this section.  

FOR COUNTY: 
Broward County  
Solid Waste and Recycling Services 
Attn: Notosha Austin 
1 N University Drive Suite 400-B 
Plantation FL 33324 
Email address: naustin@broward.org 

 
FOR MUNICIPALITY: 
Mayor 
Village of Lazy Lake 
2020 Wilton Drive 
Lazy Lake, Florida 33305 
Email address: admin@lazylakefl.us_ 
 
With a copy to: 
Pamala H. Ryan, Village Attorney 
5944 Coral Ridge Drive, PM #201 
Coral Springs, FL 33076 
Email address: pamala@ottinotlawpa.com 
 
 

mailto:naustin@broward.org


Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 13 
 

10.5. Assignment. Except for subcontracting approved by County in writing, neither this 
Agreement nor any right or interest in it may be assigned, transferred, subcontracted, or 
encumbered by Municipality without the prior written consent of County. Any assignment, 
transfer, encumbrance, or subcontract in violation of this section shall be void and ineffective, 
constitute a breach of this Agreement, and permit County to immediately terminate this 
Agreement, in addition to any other remedies available to County at law or in equity. County 
reserves the right to condition its approval of any assignment, transfer, encumbrance, or 
subcontract upon further due diligence and an additional fee paid to County to reasonably 
compensate it for the performance of any such due diligence. 

10.6. Conflicts. Neither Municipality nor its employees shall have or hold any continuing or 
frequently recurring employment or contractual relationship that is substantially antagonistic or 
incompatible with Municipality’s loyal and conscientious exercise of judgment and care related 
to its performance under this Agreement. During the Term, none of Municipality’s officers or 
employees shall serve as an expert witness against County in any legal or administrative 
proceeding in which they or Municipality is not a party, unless compelled by legal process. 
Further, such persons shall not give sworn testimony or issue a report or writing as an expression 
of such person’s expert opinion that is adverse or prejudicial to the interests of County in 
connection with any such pending or threatened legal or administrative proceeding unless 
compelled by legal process. The limitations of this section shall not preclude Municipality or any 
persons in any way from representing themselves, including giving expert testimony in support 
of such representation, in any action or in any administrative or legal proceeding. If Municipality 
is permitted pursuant to this Agreement to utilize Subcontractors to perform any Services 
required by this Agreement, Municipality shall require such Subcontractors, by written contract, 
to comply with the provisions of this section to the same extent as Municipality.  

10.7. Materiality and Waiver of Breach. Each requirement, duty, and obligation set forth in this 
Agreement was bargained for at arm’s-length and is agreed to by the Parties. Each requirement, 
duty, and obligation set forth in this Agreement is substantial and important to the formation of 
this Agreement, and each is, therefore, a material term. County’s failure to enforce any provision 
of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of such provision or modification of this 
Agreement. A waiver of any breach shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach and 
shall not be construed to be a modification of this Agreement. To be effective, any waiver must 
be in writing signed by an authorized signatory of the Party granting the waiver. 

10.8. Compliance with Laws. Municipality and the Services must comply with all Applicable Law, 
including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101, Section 504 
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the requirements of any applicable grant agreements.  

10.9. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, that part shall be deemed severed from this Agreement and the balance 
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  

10.10. Joint Preparation. This Agreement has been jointly prepared by the Parties and shall not 
be construed more strictly against either Party. 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 14 
 

10.11. Interpretation. The titles and headings contained in this Agreement are for reference 
purposes only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 
All personal pronouns used in this Agreement shall include any other gender, and the singular 
shall include the plural, and vice versa, unless the context otherwise requires. Terms such as 
“herein” refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular sentence, paragraph, or 
section where they appear, unless the context otherwise requires. Whenever reference is made 
to a section or article of this Agreement, such reference is to the section or article as a whole, 
including all subsections thereof, unless the reference is made to a particular subsection or 
subparagraph of such section or article. Any reference to “days” means calendar days, unless 
otherwise expressly stated. Any reference to approval by County shall require approval in writing, 
unless otherwise expressly stated. 

10.12. Priority of Provisions. If there is a conflict or inconsistency between any term, statement, 
requirement, or provision of any document or exhibit attached to, referenced by, or incorporated 
in this Agreement and any provision within an article or section of this Agreement, the article or 
section shall prevail and be given effect.  

10.13. Law, Jurisdiction, Venue, Waiver of Jury Trial. This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The exclusive 
venue for any lawsuit arising from, related to, or in connection with this Agreement shall be in 
the state courts of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida. If any claim 
arising from, related to, or in connection with this Agreement must be litigated in federal court, 
the exclusive venue for any such lawsuit shall be in the United States District Court or United 
States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of Florida. EACH PARTY HEREBY EXPRESSLY 
WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CIVIL LITIGATION RELATED TO 
THIS AGREEMENT.  

10.14. Amendments. Unless expressly authorized herein, no modification, amendment, or 
alteration of any portion of this Agreement is effective unless contained in a written document 
executed with the same or similar formality as this Agreement and by duly authorized 
representatives of County and Municipality.  

10.15. Prior Agreements. This Agreement represents the final and complete understanding of 
the Parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior and 
contemporaneous negotiations and discussions regarding same. All commitments, agreements, 
and understandings of the Parties concerning the subject matter of this Agreement are contained 
herein.  

10.16. Incorporation by Reference. Any and all Recital clauses stated above are true and correct 
and are incorporated in this Agreement by reference. The attached Exhibits are incorporated into 
and made a part of this Agreement.  

10.17. Counterparts and Multiple Originals. This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
originals, and may be executed in counterparts, whether signed physically or electronically, each 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 15 
 

of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one 
and the same agreement.  

10.18. Use of County Name or Logo. Municipality shall not use County’s name or logo in 
marketing or publicity materials without prior written consent from County’s Contract 
Administrator. 

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.) 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 16 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement: BROWARD 
COUNTY through its BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, signing by and through its County 
Administrator, authorized to execute same by Board action on the _____ day of 
_________________, 20__, and Municipality, signing by and through its 
__________________________________, duly authorized to execute same. 
 

 
 

COUNTY 
  
BROWARD COUNTY, by and through 
its County Administrator 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
County Administrator 
 
____ day of ______________, 20__ 
 
 
Approved as to form by 
Andrew J. Meyers 
Broward County Attorney 
115 South Andrews Avenue, Suite 423 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 
Telephone: (954) 357-7600 
 
 
   
By____________________________ 
Matthew Haber  (Date) 
Assistant County Attorney 
 
 
 
By____________________________ 
Oren Rosenthal  (Date) 
Senior Assistant County Attorney 
 
 
MH/tb 
SWRS Optional Services - Shell ILA_CAO[mh][or][am]approved 5-10-24 
05/10/2024 
#CAO!1105813.1 



Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services   Page 17 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN BROWARD COUNTY AND  THE VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE_ FOR OPTIONAL SERVICES 

FOR “KEEP BROWARD BEAUTIFUL,”  
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE AND ELECTRONICS, AND  

BULK TRASH AND YARD WASTE  
DROP-OFF PROGRAMS 

 
 

MUNICIPALITY 
 
THE VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE 
 
ATTEST:     By:        

MUNICIPAL MAYOR  
 
_______________________________        
MUNICIPAL CLERK     Print Name  
 

_____ day of __________, 20___ 
 
 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I have approved this 
Agreement as to form and legal sufficiency  
subject to execution by the parties: 
 
 
       
Municipal Attorney 



 
 

Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services  Page 18 
 

EXHIBIT A  
“KEEP BROWARD BEAUTIFUL” PROGRAM 

 

I. Program Description 

The “Keep Broward Beautiful” Program includes various smaller programs that aid with litter 
prevention, beautification, and clean-up efforts in the unincorporated areas and within 
municipalities that participate pursuant to this Agreement. 

II. Scope of Services 

A. County is responsible for the following: 
 

1. Contact interested volunteer groups and provide such groups with information on “Keep 
Broward Beautiful” programs, including, without limitation, Adopt-a-Street, Community 
Clean Up, beach sweeps, etc. 

2. Provide Adopt-a-Street support services, including but not limited to: obtaining group and 
street approval from Municipality; obtaining letters of agreement from interested groups 
as identified by County’s Contract Administrator; providing signage that recognizes 
Municipality and any interested group(s) that participate; conducting safety meetings; 
monitoring group events; and releasing non-performing groups. 

3. Provide Adopt-a-Street supplies including signs, gloves, safety vests, first-aid kits, and 
roadside caution signage. 

4. Coordinate “Keep Broward Beautiful”-related litter prevention activities, such as 
beautification efforts during the Great American Cleanup, support America Recycles Day 
initiatives, conduct clean up events, and perform an annual Litter Index review, subject 
to County’s discretion and the availability of resources. 

5. Maintain event data within Municipality. 
6. Supply Municipality with event reports on a quarterly basis. 

 
B. Municipality is responsible for the following: 
 

1. Provide timely payments to County. 
2. Designate a coordinator who will be responsible for: distributing information on “Keep 

Broward Beautiful” programs including, without limitation, forwarding information 
regarding interested volunteer groups, approving streets for adoption, supplying 
municipal logo(s) for artwork on signs and manuals, attending meetings as scheduled, 
assisting with municipal event permitting, and coordinating sign installation and 
maintenance. 

3. Approve participating volunteer groups such as homeowners' associations, schools, 
businesses, and other local civic groups. 

4. Remove and dispose of trash and trash bags when necessary. 
  



 
 

Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services  Page 19 
 

EXHIBIT B 
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE AND ELECTRONICS PROGRAM 

 

I. Program Description 

The Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program provides disposal services and 
electronics processing services at County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers and at Remote 
Collection Events. 

II. Scope of Services 

A. County is responsible for the following: 
 

1. Maintain and staff each Residential Drop-Off Center designated by County’s Contract 
Administrator for Residents’ disposal of Household Hazardous Waste and Electronic 
Waste, including electronics processing, with each Residential Drop-Off Center open to 
Residents at least one (1) day per week except for Independence Day and Christmas Day. 

2. Conduct Remote Collection Events upon request with reasonable notice from 
Municipality. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Remote Collection Events shall only be 
available to Municipality if a Residential Drop-Off Center is not located within its 
municipal jurisdiction. 

3. Determine the Remote Collection Event dates and locations based on multiple criteria, 
including, without limitation, municipal boundaries, historical event data, competing 
obligations, and availability of operational resources. 

4. Obtain cost-effective contract disposal and recycling services through competitive 
procurements for materials accepted at permanent service locations and Remote 
Collection Events. 

5. Provide regulatory oversight and compliance for each Residential Drop-Off Center and for 
Remote Collection Events. 

6. Provide outreach and promotional activities.  
7. Administer the Recycled Paint Program. 
8. Provide small businesses located within Municipality with the opportunity to use the 

Household Hazardous Waste and Electronics Program contract pricing. 
9. Collect and maintain data on Resident usage and waste disposal. 
10. Provide reports to Municipality on program activities, Resident usage, and associated 

costs upon request and with reasonable notice from Municipality. 
 
B. Municipality is responsible for the following: 
 

1. Provide timely payments to County. 
2. Provide a liaison for outreach and promotional activities, the Remote Collection Events, 

and the Recycled Paint Program, as applicable. 



 
 

Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services  Page 20 
 

3. Conduct municipal-based outreach and promotion for Household Hazardous Waste and 
Electronics Program services and events, such as inclusion in municipal newsletters and 
utility bills and promotion on municipal websites. 

4. Provide a municipal-based distribution outlet for recycled paint (if Municipality chooses 
to participate in the Recycled Paint Program). 

5. Provide a liaison, location and staff for any Remote Collection Event requested by 
Municipality, including sufficient staff for traffic control, customer surveys, restrooms, 
and incident follow-up. Municipality shall be host to no more than one (1) Remote 
Collection Event annually unless sufficient resources are available to County. 

6. Abide by any applicable County code of conduct made available online, at any RDOC or 
Remote Collection Event, or otherwise provided by County. 

  



 
 

Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services  Page 21 
 

EXHIBIT C 
BULK TRASH AND YARD WASTE DROP-OFF PROGRAM 

 

I. Program Description 

The Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-Off Program enables Residents to dispose of RDOC-
Acceptable Waste at County’s Residential Drop-Off Centers. 

II. Scope of Services 

A. County is responsible for the following: 
 

1. Administer and operate RDOC-Acceptable Waste drop-off services for Residents. 
2. Maintain and staff each Residential Drop-Off Center designated by County’s Contract 

Administrator, with each location open to Residents at least one (1) day per week except 
for Independence Day and Christmas Day. 

3. Collect and maintain data on Resident usage and waste disposal. 
4. Provide reports to Municipality on program activities, Resident usage, and associated 

costs upon request and with reasonable notice from Municipality. 
 
B. Municipality is responsible for the following: 
 

1. Provide timely payments to County. 
2. Provide a liaison for program-related assistance, and local outreach and promotional 

activities. 
3. Conduct municipal-based outreach and promotion for Bulk Trash and Yard Waste Drop-

Off Program services and events, such as inclusion in municipal newsletters and utility 
bills and promotion on municipal websites. 

4. Abide by any applicable County code of conduct made available online, at any RDOC, or 
otherwise provided by County. 

5. Abide by any applicable County rules and regulations related to vehicles, or vehicle 
specifications, including, without limitation, the following:  

a. Cargo volume shall be limited to maximum 300 cubic feet;  
b. Pickup trucks shall not be larger than full-size (i.e., 1 ton);  
c. Truck beds shall not be longer than eight feet (8');  
d. Truck beds shall not be wider than six feet (6');  
e. Commercial vehicles and all modified truck beds shall be prohibited;  
f. Open trailers shall not be longer than eight feet (8'); and  
g. Enclosed trailers shall not be longer than eight feet (8'). 

  



 
 

Solid Waste ILA for Optional Services  Page 22 
 

EXHIBIT D 
ANNUAL COSTS OF COUNTY PROGRAMS 

 

Municipality
 2020 Census 

Population* 

Household Hazardous

Waste Program

Bulk Waste

Drop-off

Program

Keep Broward 

Beautiful

Program                

@ $2.69 /capita @ $1.67 /capita @ $0.41 /capita
Coconut Creek 57,833 155,571$                        96,581$                     23,712$                   

Cooper City 34,401 92,539$                          57,450$                     14,104$                   

Coral Springs 134,394 361,520$                        224,438$                   55,102$                   

Dania Beach 31,723 85,335$                          52,977$                     13,006$                   

Davie 105,691 284,309$                        176,504$                   43,333$                   

Deerfield Beach 86,859 233,651$                        145,055$                   35,612$                   

Ft. Lauderdale 182,760 491,624$                        305,209$                   74,932$                   

Hallandale Beach 41,217 110,874$                        68,832$                     16,899$                   

Hillsboro Beach 1,987 5,345$                            3,318$                       815$                        

Hollywood 153,067 411,750$                        255,622$                   62,757$                   

Lauderdale by the Sea 6,198 16,673$                          10,351$                     2,541$                     

Lauderdale Lakes 35,954 96,716$                          60,043$                     14,741$                   

Lauderhill 74,482 200,357$                        124,385$                   30,538$                   

Lazy Lake Village 33 89$                                 55$                            14$                          

Lighthouse Point 10,486 28,207$                          17,512$                     4,299$                     

Margate 58,712 157,935$                        98,049$                     24,072$                   

Miramar 134,721 362,399$                        224,984$                   55,236$                   

Municipal Services District 15,345 41,278$                          25,626$                     6,291$                     

North Lauderdale 44,794 120,496$                        74,806$                     18,366$                   

Oakland Park 44,229 118,976$                        73,862$                     18,134$                   

Parkland 34,670 93,262$                          57,899$                     14,215$                   

Pembroke Park 6,260 16,839$                          10,454$                     2,567$                     

Pembroke Pines 171,178 460,469$                        285,867$                   70,183$                   

Plantation 91,750 246,808$                        153,223$                   37,618$                   

Pompano Beach 112,046 301,404$                        187,117$                   45,939$                   

Sea Ranch Lakes 540 1,453$                            902$                          221$                        

Southwest Ranches 7,607 20,463$                          12,704$                     3,119$                     

Sunrise 97,335 261,831$                        162,549$                   39,907$                   

Tamarac 71,897 193,403$                        120,068$                   29,478$                   

West Park 15,130 40,700$                          25,267$                     6,203$                     

Weston 68,107 183,208$                        113,739$                   27,924$                   

Wilton Manors 11,426 30,736$                          19,081$                     4,685$                     

* Population figures are from the U.S. Census Bureau 

(https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/browardcountyflorida,US/PST045219).

Broward County, FL - Public Works

Solid Waste and Recycling Services

ANNUAL COSTS OF COUNTY PROGRAMS - FY 2025

 



 

V01.1 
 
 

Outline of Procedure for Merger 
 Review of Pros and Cons document 
 Council votes to move ahead with placing the issue on the March 11th ballot 

(referendum). Supervisor of Elections must be notified by the end of the year.   
Estimated Cost to the Village for the election is $70. 

 Finalize Memorandum of Understanding & specific details with Wilton Manors – once 
terms are finalized, the WM Commission will vote on whether to annex/absorb Lazy 
Lake if the future referendum were to pass in March. If the Commission does not 
approve, Village residents should vote ‘No’ on the referendum. 

 Hold public meetings to discuss- Roughly a month before the election, hold at least one 
public town hall meeting with residents and select Wilton Manors representatives to 
discuss questions and concerns. 

 Voter Referendum in March election 
 
 
Reasons For/Against Merger with Wilton Manors 

PROs CONs 
Reduction in Millage rate and Water bill  Loss of Local Control 
Closer Proximity to important services Widening of Lazy Lane 
Avoid burdensome requirements designed for 
larger municipalities 

Public Access to Lake 

Access to larger budget and reserves  
 
  



 

V01.1 
 
 

 
Details 
PROS 
Reduction in millage/taxes and Water surcharge. Wilton Manors has a lower millage rate than 
Lazy Lake. Taxes would be @4% lower under Wilton Manors and water bills would be 25% 
lower. 
 
Closer proximity to important services such as public safety, Code enforcement (for noise 
violations), and access to dedicated staff/employees and Code enforcement officers, who are 
available after 5:00 p.m., and on the weekend. 
 
Avoid burdensome requirements designed for larger municipalities – The Village must comply 
with regulations placed on all municipalities which are designed with much larger entities in 
mind. For example, the Village must comply with flood plain, land use and zoning regulations 
mandated by the State. About half of our registered voters are needed to fill the positions of 
Mayor & Council members, and the state is attempting to Mandate the disclosure of personal 
financial information, making it more difficult to find residents willing to serve.  Please recall 
that the Village has been repeatedly investigated by the Broward County Office of Inspector 
General (OIG) for failure to comply with local and state laws. The OIG makes a point to 
reference the Village as examples in training/compliance materials. 
 
Access to larger budget and financial reserves to cover (or avoid) upcoming expenses from 
deferred maintenance and unexpected events like hurricanes, flooding, and legal challenges.  If 
we remain a municipality, we will have to fund the budget to cover costs for a Land Use Study 
and for digitizing municipal ordinances. 
 
CONS 
Loss of Local Control- Merging with another municipality will mean that decisions affecting the 
community will be made by a group with larger concerns and many more issues to deal with 
and Lazy Lake will be a small part of those.  
 
Widening of Lazy Lane – Wilton Manors has minimum requirements for street widths to ensure 
streets are accessible for public services. The last half (approximately) of Lazy Lane does not 
meet these requirements, so if widening is required, some yard/lawn area would be lost. 
 
Public Access to Lake – Once the Village is part of a larger municipality, the public may be given 
access to the Lake.  



Here's the email from Ray. 

---------- Forwarded message --------- 

From: Raymond Nyhuis <mrrnyhuis@yahoo.com> 

Date: Mon, Jun 24, 2024 at 10:36â€¯PM 

Subject: Re: Sunshine Law cases 

To: Carlton Kirby <ckirby@lazylakefl.us>, Pamala Ryan <pamala@ottinotlawpa.com> 

 

Pamela, attached is a diagram of the village. The Green Dots are people that I have in 
writing that are opposed to changing to Wilton Manors from lazy. The red dots are the 
ones that are for changing to Wilton Manors. The little yellow dots indicate the ones that 
said they would welcome more information as long as it did not spend more of The 
Village's money obtaining it. With that knowledge how can anybody including the mayor 
go forward with a meeting spending money planning a potential agreement with Wilton 
Manors when it's already been put up in fact that it's not wanted by more than a majority 
of the village residents and property owners? Just because of that fluke that happened 
at the last meeting does not mean that money and time should be wasted on this issue. 
We have much more pressing things to pursue such as the sewer system and trees off 
of the lake and the condition of the lake. If the mayor feels he has to proceed and waste 
The Villages time and money as he promised not to do when he received the position of 
Mayor then well I don't know what to say about that. I think the term of ethical would 
apply to making an agreement and sticking to it not making an agreement to get a 
position and then turning right around and durin doing the opposite. This is not an 
emergency in any term whatsoever and I do believe in my opinion and opinions of a few 
others that it should be brought up at the next meeting and sorted out differently. 
 

mailto:mrrnyhuis@yahoo.com
mailto:ckirby@lazylakefl.us
mailto:pamala@ottinotlawpa.com




Report Printed:

Village of Lazy Lake

2210 Lazy Lane

Carlton Kirby

Lazy Lake FL, 33305

6/21/2024

Page 1 of 5Report To:

24F0356Work Order #         

Project:         

Lake Water Testing

2210 Lazy Lane, Lazy Lake, FL

ResultParameter MDL Date Analy.QC Units

Lab ID:

Client Sample ID: South Down

24F0356-01 Collection Date:

Matrix: Water

06/11/24  10:53

Laboratory Analysis Report

Received Date: 06/11/24  13:22

PQL Method Date Ext. Analyst

Cesar LugoCollected By:

Dil

Field Parameter (s) (See Notes and Definitions Page)

1 1 EPA 120.1 06/11  10:5306/11  10:53 CLSpecific Conductance (field) umhos/cm@25°C345 1

0.0100 0.0300 EPA 360.1 06/11  10:5306/11  10:53 CLDissolved Oxygen mg/L11.6 1

0.100 0.100 SM4500-H+ B-2011 06/11  10:5306/11  10:53 CLpH (Field) at 25°C S.U.8.48 1

0.100 0.100 EPA 170.1 06/11  10:5306/11  10:53 CLTemperature (field) °C27.4 1

Wet Chemistry

0.0196 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  17:1006/11  17:00 JPNitrate as N U mg/LND 1

0.0275 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  17:1006/11  17:00 JPNitrite as N U mg/LND 1

0.00820 0.500 TKN + NOX 06/18  18:3006/18  18:30 OCTotal Nitrogen mg/L0.927 1

0.0543 0.100 EPA 365.4 06/18  14:0106/17  13:26 MWOPhosphorus-Total U mg/LND 1

Microbiology

10 10 SM9222D-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMFecal Coliforms CFU/100 ml350 10

20 20 SM9222B-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMColiform-Total CFU/100 ml1340 20

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.

1460 W. McNab Road, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

Pembroke Laboratory

528 Gooch Rd.

Fort Mead, FL 33841

Big Lake Laboratory

610 Parrot Ave. N.

Okeechobee, FL 34972

Savannah Laboratory

108 Airport Park Dr.

Garden City, GA 31408

www.flenviro.com

Lakeland Laboratory

111 Easton Dr.

Lakeland, FL 33803



Report Printed:

Village of Lazy Lake

2210 Lazy Lane

Carlton Kirby

Lazy Lake FL, 33305

6/21/2024

Page 2 of 5Report To:

24F0356Work Order #         

Project:         

Lake Water Testing

2210 Lazy Lane, Lazy Lake, FL

ResultParameter MDL Date Analy.QC Units

Lab ID:

Client Sample ID: South Up

24F0356-02 Collection Date:

Matrix: Water

06/11/24  10:58

Laboratory Analysis Report

Received Date: 06/11/24  13:22

PQL Method Date Ext. Analyst

Cesar LugoCollected By:

Dil

Field Parameter (s) (See Notes and Definitions Page)

1 1 EPA 120.1 06/11  10:5806/11  10:58 CLSpecific Conductance (field) umhos/cm@25°C368 1

0.0100 0.0300 EPA 360.1 06/11  10:5806/11  10:58 CLDissolved Oxygen mg/L7.94 1

0.100 0.100 SM4500-H+ B-2011 06/11  10:5806/11  10:58 CLpH (Field) at 25°C S.U.8.32 1

0.100 0.100 EPA 170.1 06/11  10:5806/11  10:58 CLTemperature (field) °C27.9 1

Wet Chemistry

0.0196 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  17:2606/11  17:00 JPNitrate as N U mg/LND 1

0.0275 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  17:2606/11  17:00 JPNitrite as N U mg/LND 1

0.00820 0.500 TKN + NOX 06/18  18:3006/18  18:30 OCTotal Nitrogen mg/L0.903 1

0.0543 0.100 EPA 365.4 06/18  14:0106/17  13:26 MWOPhosphorus-Total U mg/LND 1

Microbiology

10 10 SM9222D-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMFecal Coliforms CFU/100 ml320 10

20 20 SM9222B-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMColiform-Total CFU/100 ml1400 20

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.

1460 W. McNab Road, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

Pembroke Laboratory

528 Gooch Rd.

Fort Mead, FL 33841

Big Lake Laboratory

610 Parrot Ave. N.

Okeechobee, FL 34972

Savannah Laboratory

108 Airport Park Dr.

Garden City, GA 31408

www.flenviro.com

Lakeland Laboratory

111 Easton Dr.

Lakeland, FL 33803



Report Printed:

Village of Lazy Lake

2210 Lazy Lane

Carlton Kirby

Lazy Lake FL, 33305

6/21/2024

Page 3 of 5Report To:

24F0356Work Order #         

Project:         

Lake Water Testing

2210 Lazy Lane, Lazy Lake, FL

ResultParameter MDL Date Analy.QC Units

Lab ID:

Client Sample ID: North Down

24F0356-03 Collection Date:

Matrix: Water

06/11/24  11:10

Laboratory Analysis Report

Received Date: 06/11/24  13:22

PQL Method Date Ext. Analyst

Cesar LugoCollected By:

Dil

Field Parameter (s) (See Notes and Definitions Page)

1 1 EPA 120.1 06/11  11:1006/11  11:10 CLSpecific Conductance (field) umhos/cm@25°C235 1

0.0100 0.0300 EPA 360.1 06/11  11:1006/11  11:10 CLDissolved Oxygen mg/L6.37 1

0.100 0.100 SM4500-H+ B-2011 06/11  11:1006/11  11:10 CLpH (Field) at 25°C S.U.8.18 1

0.100 0.100 EPA 170.1 06/11  11:1006/11  11:10 CLTemperature (field) °C27.8 1

Wet Chemistry

0.0196 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  17:4306/11  17:00 JPNitrate as N U mg/LND 1

0.0275 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  17:4306/11  17:00 JPNitrite as N U mg/LND 1

0.00820 0.500 TKN + NOX 06/18  18:3006/18  18:30 OCTotal Nitrogen mg/L1.45 1

0.0543 0.100 EPA 365.4 06/18  14:0106/17  13:26 MWOPhosphorus-Total mg/L0.129 1

Microbiology

10 10 SM9222D-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMFecal Coliforms CFU/100 ml370 10

20 20 SM9222B-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMColiform-Total CFU/100 ml1540 20

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.

1460 W. McNab Road, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

Pembroke Laboratory

528 Gooch Rd.

Fort Mead, FL 33841

Big Lake Laboratory

610 Parrot Ave. N.

Okeechobee, FL 34972

Savannah Laboratory

108 Airport Park Dr.

Garden City, GA 31408

www.flenviro.com

Lakeland Laboratory

111 Easton Dr.

Lakeland, FL 33803



Report Printed:

Village of Lazy Lake

2210 Lazy Lane

Carlton Kirby

Lazy Lake FL, 33305

6/21/2024

Page 4 of 5Report To:

24F0356Work Order #         

Project:         

Lake Water Testing

2210 Lazy Lane, Lazy Lake, FL

ResultParameter MDL Date Analy.QC Units

Lab ID:

Client Sample ID: North Up

24F0356-04 Collection Date:

Matrix: Water

06/11/24  11:15

Laboratory Analysis Report

Received Date: 06/11/24  13:22

PQL Method Date Ext. Analyst

Cesar LugoCollected By:

Dil

Field Parameter (s) (See Notes and Definitions Page)

1 1 EPA 120.1 06/11  11:1506/11  11:15 CLSpecific Conductance (field) umhos/cm@25°C494 1

0.0100 0.0300 EPA 360.1 06/11  11:1506/11  11:15 CLDissolved Oxygen mg/L5.28 1

0.100 0.100 SM4500-H+ B-2011 06/11  11:1506/11  11:15 CLpH (Field) at 25°C S.U.8.32 1

0.100 0.100 EPA 170.1 06/11  11:1506/11  11:15 CLTemperature (field) °C25.2 1

Wet Chemistry

0.0196 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  18:3206/11  17:00 JPNitrate as N U mg/LND 1

0.0275 0.0375 EPA 300.0 06/11  18:3206/11  17:00 JPNitrite as N U mg/LND 1

0.00820 0.500 TKN + NOX 06/18  18:3006/18  18:30 OCTotal Nitrogen mg/L0.823 1

0.0543 0.100 EPA 365.4 06/18  14:0106/17  13:26 MWOPhosphorus-Total J3 mg/L0.123 1

Microbiology

10 10 SM9222D-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMFecal Coliforms CFU/100 ml410 10

20 20 SM9222B-2015 06/12  14:2506/11  14:05 CMColiform-Total CFU/100 ml1180 20

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.

1460 W. McNab Road, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

Pembroke Laboratory

528 Gooch Rd.

Fort Mead, FL 33841

Big Lake Laboratory

610 Parrot Ave. N.

Okeechobee, FL 34972

Savannah Laboratory

108 Airport Park Dr.

Garden City, GA 31408

www.flenviro.com

Lakeland Laboratory

111 Easton Dr.

Lakeland, FL 33803



Report Printed:

Village of Lazy Lake

2210 Lazy Lane

Carlton Kirby

Lazy Lake FL, 33305

6/21/2024

Page 5 of 5Report To:

24F0356Work Order #         

Project:         

Lake Water Testing

2210 Lazy Lane, Lazy Lake, FL

Notes and Definitions 

U Indicated that the compound was analyzed for but not detected. This shall be used to indicate that the specific component was not 

detected. The value associated with the qualifier shall be the laboratory method detection limit.

J3 The matrix spike recovery outside method acceptance limits indicating matrix interference.

Sample results reported on a dry weight basis

Relative Percent DifferenceRPD

dry

Not ReportedNR

Analyte NOT DETECTED at or above the detection limitND

V Indicated that the analyte was detected in both the sample and the associated method blank. 

The reported value is between the laboratory method detection limit and the laboratory practical quantitation limit.I

Z Too many colonies were present for accurate counting.

N.O.O. No Odor Observed

Field parameter measured by clientREP

SUB Work performed by outside (subcontracted) labs denoted by SUB in analyst field.

Analyte DETECTEDDET

Authorized Signature

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services,Inc.

Certification# E86006   Phone#: (954) 978-6400

All NELAP certified analysis are performed in accordance with Chapter 64E-1 Florida Administrative code, which has been determined to be equivalent to NELAC 

standards. Analysis certified by programs other than NELAP are designated with a "~".

Angel Barreto - Customer Services ManagerQC=Qualifier Codes as defined by DEP 62-160

Unless indicated, soil results are reported on actual (wet) weight basis.

The Color SM2120B method is reported as (Color / pH)

Legionella analyzed under CDC acreditation program

Dilution factors >= 1000 are abreviated using k=1000 and M=1000000

Field parameters are not NELAP acredited.

Results relate only to this sample.

Florida-Spectrum Environmental Services, Inc.

1460 W. McNab Road, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

Pembroke Laboratory

528 Gooch Rd.

Fort Mead, FL 33841

Big Lake Laboratory

610 Parrot Ave. N.

Okeechobee, FL 34972

Savannah Laboratory

108 Airport Park Dr.

Garden City, GA 31408

www.flenviro.com

Lakeland Laboratory

111 Easton Dr.

Lakeland, FL 33803







Upon completion of the webinar, our team will be available to respond to questions and provide 
additional assistance as you work to apply for a Resilient Florida grant and conduct a vulnerability 
assessment.  

 
Should you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact 
Christina Miskis, SFRPC Principal Planner, at cmiskis@sfrpc.com or (954) 924-3653. Thank you in 
advance for your time and assistance. We look forward to helping your community in becoming more 
resilient. 

 
Sincerely,  

 
 
 
 

Isabel Cosio Carballo, MPA 
Executive Director 
 
Enclosure 
 
cc The Honorable Carlton Kirby, Mayor 
     The Honorable William R. Daughtery, Councilmember 
     The Honorable Mark DiPaolo, Councilmember 
     The Honorable Jeff Grenell, Councilmember 
     The Honorable Warren Nadeau, Councilmember 
     The Honorable Ray Nyhuis, Councilmember 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Daniel Gallego

OUTREACH MEETING

You are invited to the South Florida Regional
Planning Council's Regional Resilience and
Vulnerability Assessment meeting. We will provide
guidance on how to apply for funding and conduct
a vulnerability assessment under the State's
Resilient Florida Grant Program. Conducting this
vulnerability assessment unlocks additional grant
funding opportunities to implement resilient
infrastructure projects. Your participation is crucial
for building a more resilient South Florida.

Wednesday
July 31, 2024
10:00 - 11:30 AM

SFRPC REGIONAL 
RESILIENCE AND
VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT

Scan this QR code
to register

Thursday
August 1, 2024
2:00 - 3:30 PM

or go to 
https://linktr.ee/Outreach

Meetings

https://linktr.ee/OutreachMeetings
https://linktr.ee/OutreachMeetings

	Letter to Village of Lazy Lake.pdf
	Letter to Village of Lazy Lake.pdf
	Letter to Village of Lazy Lake.pdf
	SFRPC Meeting Invitation Flyer - Regional Resilience

	ADP793.tmp
	VILLAGE OF LAZY LAKE
	VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING
	MEETING MINUTES
	2312 WILTON MANORS, FL. 33305
	THURSDAY, JUNE 6, 2024
	6:30PM
	Village Council

	Letter to Village of Lazy Lake.pdf
	Letter to Village of Lazy Lake.pdf
	Letter to Village of Lazy Lake.pdf
	SFRPC Meeting Invitation Flyer - Regional Resilience




